
 

PC Minutes 03-31-16 

 

 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 
                                                3 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  5 
Thursday, March 31, 2016 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 
County of Weber, State of Utah          8 

_____________________________________________________________________ 9 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds 11 
Commissioner Larry Weir 12 
Commissioner Darren Williams 13 
Commissioner Dan Johnson 14 
Commissioner Charles Allen 15 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan - excused 16 
Vice- Chair Scott Larsen – arrived 6:02 p.m. 17 
Chief Building Inspector Jeff Monroe 18 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 19 
City Attorney Bill Morris 20 
 21 
Others Present  22 
Brad Larsen, Daniel Thurgood  23 

 24 
 25 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 26 
 27 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 28 
 29 

3. WELCOME  30 
 31 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 32 
 33 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 34 
Motion by Commissioner Allen 35 

Seconded by Commissioner Williams 36 
To approve the agenda 37 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 38 
 39 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 25, 2016 40 
Motion by Commissioner Allen 41 

Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 42 
To approve the minutes of February 25, 2016 43 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 



 

PC Minutes 03-31-16 

 

 

 48 
5. SPECIAL ORDER 49 
 50 

5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON THE SITE PLAN 51 
APPROVAL FOR VERIZON TELECOMMUNICATION TOWER TO BE 52 
CONSTRUCTED AT VAN LEEUWEN PARK AT APPROXIMATELY 125 53 
WEST 4475 SOUTH  54 
Chairman Reynolds opened the public hearing at 6:03 p.m. 55 
There were no citizen comments. 56 

Chairman Reynolds closed the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. 57 
 58 
Monroe noted that this site was previously approved for a cell tower, but the tower was 59 
never constructed by the other carrier. 60 

 61 
5.2  PUBLIC HEARING: TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON A  SITE PLAN 62 

APPROVAL FOR  AS SUBDIVISION TO BE LOCATED AT 63 
APPROXIMATELY 600 EAST 5700 SOUTH 64 
 65 
Chairman Reynolds opened the public hearing at 6:24 p.m. 66 
There were no citizen comments. 67 

Chairman Reynolds closed the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. 68 
 69 
 70 

6. NEW BUSINESS            71 
    72 
            6.1  DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN FOR VERIZON  73 
                  TELECOMMUNICATION TOWER TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT VAN  74 
                  LEEUWEN PARK AT APPROXIMATELY 125 WEST 4475 SOUTH 75 
 76 
Commissioner Allen asked Monroe to supply Mr. Thurgood with city ordinances that are 77 
applicable to the towers. 78 
Commissioner Allen stated that he would like to make sure that all engineering designs and 79 
construction of the monopole meet city code. Monroe stated that the site plans meet all the 80 
criteria stated.   81 
Thurgood stated that the soil reports, along with other tests, will be provided to the City 82 
Inspector during the permit phase. 83 
Commissioner Allen asked that the applicant provide a letter from Hill Air Force Base stating 84 
that the tower will not interfere with the flight pattern. Commissioner Larsen noted that Hill AB 85 
flies under FAA regulations so they have to comply with flight regulations. 86 
Thurgood stated that Verizon has spoken to the school districts and stated that Weber County 87 
School District was not interested in working with Verizon so Verizon turned to the City to lease 88 
the land for their tower. Monroe stated that the public hearing is the place where the School 89 
District could have voiced their concerns, if any.  90 
Thurgood stated that there will not be a platform above or below the antennae. Thurgood stated 91 
that the 8 foot fence will not be higher than the 12 foot roof pitch.   He stated that the aluminum 92 
fence will be open at the request of the Development Review Committee. Thurgood also noted 93 
that the 8 foot fence is a deterrent for kids to climb. 94 



 

PC Minutes 03-31-16 

 

 

Thurgood stated that there will be a 6 foot lightning rod and the monopole will be treated for 95 
rust. It will be a bark materiel and will be galvanized. Thurgood stated that he does not know 96 
how many branches are on the pole. Chairman Reynolds stated that he has seen other antennae 97 
like the one to be constructed and noted that they could be mistaken for real trees if you didn’t 98 
know they were antennae. 99 
Monroe stated that the plans were reviewed by the Development Review Committee which 100 
consists of the city engineer, the Public Works Director, the City Attorney, the Fire Chief, the 101 
City Manager, and the Building Inspector. 102 
Commissioner Williams clarified that the street is on 4475 South. Monroe stated that it is 103 
approximate vicinity. 104 
Chairman Reynolds asked the wind rating on the tower. Thurgood stated that his is unsure on the 105 
exact number, but sated that it is at the maximum rating. Monroe stated that they will have the 106 
information on the permit and will most likely exceed the city wind load of 90 miles per hour. 107 
Thurgood stated that the asphalt road was a request from the city manager and public works dept. 108 
Thurgood stated that they have installed around 20 towers of this type in the state. Commissioner 109 
Allen stated that he hopes that people interested in the tree monopole does not cause any 110 
problems. 111 

 112 
Motion by Commissioner Larsen 113 
Seconded by Commissioner Weir 114 

To approve the site plan for 115 
Verizon Telecommunication tower 116 

To be constructed at Van Leeuwen Park at 117 
Approximately 125 W 4475 S 118 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 119 

 120 
 121 
            6.2  DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN FOR SUBDIVISION  122 
                  TO BE LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 600 EAST 5700 SOUTH       123 
 124 
Monroe stated that the plan has gone through the Development Review Committee and stated 125 
that Mr. (Brad) Larsen has complied with change requests from the City. He stated that the 126 
Development Review Committee feels that all the changes have been met and feel comfortable 127 
moving forward on the subdivision. 128 
Chairman Reynolds stated that the plan does not specify secondary water. Larsen state that the 129 
SW stands for secondary water and is present on the plat. Monroe stated that Larsen will need to 130 
bring a clearance letter from Weber Basin Water. 131 
Larsen stated that name of the development will be Fieldcrest at Pleasant Valley. 132 
Commissioner Allen asked if there will be carports. Larsen stated that the units will be single 133 
family dwellings with two or three car garages.  Commissioner Allen asked if there will be stop 134 
signs on the 5700 South entrance. Larsen replied that there will be. 135 
Larsen stated that they hope to start construction after the April 19 the Council meeting. 136 
Larsen noted that the developer is very particular with the plans and would like to use current 137 
material that has a good curb appeal.  138 

 139 
Motion by Commissioner Johnson 140 
Seconded by Commissioner Larsen 141 



 

PC Minutes 03-31-16 

 

 

To approve the site plan for a subdivision 142 
To be located at approximately 600 East 5700 South 143 

Approved unanimously (6-0) 144 
 145 
            6.3  DISCUSSION/DIRECTION: CITY INFILL PROPERTIES DESIGN REVIEW 146 
Monroe stated that the discussion is a continuation on the infill discussion from the last meeting. 147 
He stated that it is his understanding that parcels identified as infill properties would meet with 148 
the Development Review Committee to work on development agreements for their properties. 149 
Monroe asked the Planning Commission the types of allowable structures they would they like to 150 
see built. He stated that the four types of structures to be considered are single, duplex, triplex, or 151 
four-plex units. He stated that the lots will not have any higher density than a four-plex. He 152 
stated that it is important that the units to be built in the area have great curb appeal. Monroe 153 
presented slides of some examples of units in neighboring areas 154 
Monroe stated that it has not been decided by the land owners if the units will be rental or owner 155 
occupied. Commissioner Larsen stated that it is important to have larger square footage because 156 
it makes it less likely to be rented out. Commissioner Larsen stated that the cottages are very nice 157 
and the square footage does not make it cost effective to rent out. He stated that that he likes the 158 
cottages because they look nice and have a minimal yard which saves water and still looks good. 159 
Monroe stated that one of his concerns is parking and guest parking spaces. Chairman Reynolds 160 
agreed that roads and parking are an important component. Commissioner Larsen stated that he 161 
does not want the units to have an apartment feel and would like the garages attached to the 162 
homes. Monroe stated that the characteristics of the units can be addressed in the ordinance. 163 
Monroe stated that there are other items to consider, including setbacks, fire code egress, and 164 
turn around requirements. Commissioner Larsen stated that a consideration for each plan should 165 
be additional parking that does not cause congestion.  166 
Monroe stated that there would be approval from the Fire Chief to make sure there is room for 167 
fire equipment turn around. 168 
Monroe asked for input on architectural features and design features. He stated that in creating 169 
the ordinance, the City is basically creating a CCR. Commissioner Larsen stated that it is very 170 
important to have a double garage. The Commission discussed siding types. Commissioner 171 
Larsen stated that it should be wood plank or vinyl. Chairman Reynolds noted that sometimes 172 
vinyl blows off and replacement panels don’t always match. 173 
Monroe asked the Commission to think about consideration for items to be addressed in the 174 
development agreements. He stated that constructing a development agreement is a long process 175 
with many items to be considered. Monroe noted that boiler plate agreements do not always fit 176 
the City and the ordinance will be unique to the City. 177 
Monroe stated that the Council is in favor of the Planning Commission to come up with a 178 
development agreement ordinance. 179 

 180 
                               181 
      7.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  182 
           ZONING ISSUES 183 
 184 
Monroe stated that the Development Review Team will meet next Tuesday to discuss another 185 
development that is very similar to the subdivision that was approved tonight. 186 
Monroe stated that another item on the agenda is a request to build an RV storage center. 187 



 

PC Minutes 03-31-16 

 

 

Commissioner Johnson stated that the bid plans are out for the Realty Association building. 188 
Monroe stated that they have not come in for their building permit as of yet. 189 

          190 
8. UPCOMING EVENTS    191 

April 5th: City Council Meeting Cancelled 192 
April 19th: City Council Work Session 5:00 p.m. 193 
April 19th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 194 
April 28th: Planning Commission meeting 6:00 p.m.          195 

   196 
 197 

9. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   198 
 199 

Motion by Commissioner Johnson 200 
Seconded by Commissioner Allen 201 

To adjourn the meeting 202 
Approved unanimously 203 

Time: 7:05 p.m. 204 
 205 
 206 
 207 

__________________________________     ____________________________ 208 
Date Approved                                                City Recorder 209 


